CADGuru & Associates

Solidworks® CAD Solutions

MASTER SERVICE AND NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

Client Contract

Non-Disclosure Agreement, Non-Compete and other Important Information





Desiree Villeneuve, P. Eng, CSWE info@cadguru.ca +1 647-931-7913

Table of Contents

Description of Potential Services:	3
Statement of Work and Payment	4
Collaboratively Working with Clients – Communication Methodologies	4
Benefits of Working with CADGuru & Associates Services	5
Delivery and Acceptance:	5
NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT	6
BACKGROUND:	6
Confidential Information	6
Avoiding Conflict of Opportunities	8
Non-Solicitation	9
Non-Competition	9
Ownership and Title	9
Remedies	10
Return of Confidential Information	10
Notices	11
Representations	11
Termination	11
Assignment	11
Amendments	11
Governing Law	12
General Provisions	12



Description of Potential Services:

CADGuru & Associates provides a range of expert engineering design support using SolidWorks design and drafting technology. CADGuru & Associates works with clients to meet their diverse business needs whether the need is for contracting out of work to complement existing engineering resource capacity stressed by heavy workloads or the need for in-house training support. CADGuru & Associates works collaboratively with clients to ensure services meet their needs respecting the needs for client confidentiality and protection of intellectual design rights.

Among the services CADGuru & Associates provide are:

- ➤ SolidWorks 3D CAD Part & Assembly Modeling, Application of Design Updates
- SolidWorks 2D Drafting Packages for:
 - · Design Reviews,
 - Quality Control, Building
 - · Stamping Purposes,
 - Purchasing,
 - Production,
 - · Welding, and
 - Assembly Purposes
- > Assembly Repair + Maintenance Guide Updates
- > PDF / DWG / DXF conversions to SolidWorks files
- > Physical Measurements, or scanned imports to SolidWorks' Conversions
- > Concept Sketches, or Picture Images to 3D Model Assembly Conversions
- > Standard Product Selections to SolidWorks Sales and Production Drawing Automations
- > SolidWorks' FEA Simulation Studies and Reports
- ➤ Increase SolidWorks' Performance
- ➤ Customized SolidWorks Training

We start building a collaborative working relationship with a client from the start of the initial contact to understand the business need. This first contact is followed up by a "proposal" and "statement of work" through which we identify the various stages of work to be completed, estimate hours for completion, set deadlines for delivery and estimate price. We discuss price and price varies, depending on the type of work involved, urgency of delivery, and volume of work involved.

As a policy and as a practice, we do not hire any of our CADGuru associates from our clients including up to three years after an employee has left the client's organization. We realize that clients have invested in hiring and developing their employees and CADGuru & Associates' mission is to work with clients to support their business success. Afterall, your success, as a client, determines CADGuru & Associates' success.



Statement of Work and Payment

The Statement of Work will outline the various phases of work for the project. For each phase of work,

- project deliverables will be delineated,
- dates for the deliverables will be set out;
- > methodology for communication will be delineated;
- hours of work projected for each deliverable; and
- the cost projected for each deliverable.

In addition, the payment schedule will be agreed to and the method of payment delineated. All of these provisions, as with any Statement of Work, will be discussed with and negotiated with the client to support the successful achievement of project goals.

All project deliverables will need to be approved by the client before invoicing is initiated. After acceptance of a deliverable by a client, all submitted invoices are due within 15 days. Other payment arrangements can be negotiated on a case-by-case situation and request.

Collaboratively Working with Clients – Communication Methodologies

In working together, CADGuru & Associates will respond to your preferences and the sharing of documents. We make the assumption that if clients are uncomfortable with any of our communication methodologies, they will discuss the situation with us and we will work together to arrive at a solution that responds to both our needs.

We'll respond to your preferences for online meetings, phone calls, work documents or e-mails to share both verbal and written information. We have the capability of receiving files from a number of platforms from PDM, to VPN, to OneDrive, Dropbox and others... Salesforce even, or similar.

Meeting Arrangements

Online meetings can be booked at any time, on the real-time calendar: cadguru.ca/meeting. They can be also booked at any time, via e-mail, cell texts or messaging.

Meetings can be arranged through Teams meetings, Skype online meetings, Whatsapp Phone calls, Zooms meetings, or any other platform that you require

During meetings, notes may be taken to fully understand your requirements. Screen captures of critical key points may also be taken to support our full understanding of your project details.

Written Information

Additionally, Dropbox is used for sharing and storing of files. Archived copies of files are placed on a stand-alone hard-drive and a redundant computer drive.

"Asana" is used to outline task requirements, tweaks, notes or quality control issues and for scheduling and project management purposes. No files/PDFs are posted on Asana, but sometimes screen caps with notes are posted.



Day-to- Day Routine Communication

For the less critical day to day information or touching base, phone calls, text messages, chat messages in Skype, Whatsapp or e-mails are used to keep up-to-date on work challenges and work progress.

Office Hours

Normal office hours are Monday to Friday from 0700 hours to 1500 hours, EST time zone. Statements of work will provide emergency contact information.

Benefits of Working with CADGuru & Associates

- Working collaboratively with clients, we take the time to understand your business needs and have the flexibility in resources to meet your immediate needs;
- Your working through our Services gives you the best return on investment without your hiring permanent employees;
- Our expert associates provide you with the instant knowledge and skills to carry out the work; and
- We are respectful of others working in a diverse workforce including with your employees and managers. We also expect the same respectful behaviour of clients working with our diverse associates.

Delivery and Acceptance of Deliverables:

The term "contractor" is used to refer to CADGuru & Associates. The Statement of Work sets out all the requirements for deliverables including specifications and schedule of delivery, among other requirements.

- **a. Acceptance Period**. The Client will have approximately one week following the date of receiving the deliverable to assess, review and bring forth any tweaks or adjustments as required.
- **b. Completion**. When the Contractor produces a deliverable in accordance with the Statement of Work, then the Contractor shall be deemed to have completed the Statement of Work obligations.
- **c. Rejection**. If the Contractor fails to produce the deliverable in accordance with the Statement of Work requirements, then:
 - **Notification**. The Client shall detail in writing the grounds for rejection; and suggestions for improvement, and
 - **Rectification**. The Contractor shall use best efforts to correct the "Work" and upon delivery of such correction, the process of acceptance, completion, and rejection shall restart.
 - **Continued Failure**. If the Contractor's corrections fails to deliver the "Work" in accordance with the Statement of Work, , then Client may elect to:
 - 1. terminate the agreement, or

+1 647-931-7913

2. adjust the specifications, deliverables, or schedule of work.



THIS	MASTER SERVICE AND NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") dated this day of
, 2	0
BETW	EEN:
	of
	(the "Client")
	OF THE FIRST PART
	- AND -
	'CADGuru + Associates' DESIREE VILLENEUVE of 9138-9580 Yonge Street, Richmond Hill, Ontario, L4C 1V6
	(the "Contractor")
	OF THE SECOND PART

NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT

BACKGROUND:

A. The Contractor is currently or may be retained as an independent contractor with the Client for the position of: CAD SERVICES AND PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT. In addition to this responsibility or position (the "Retainer"), this Agreement also covers any position or responsibility now or later held with the Client.

B. The Contractor will receive from the Client, or develop on the behalf of the Client, Confidential Information as a result of the Retainer (the 'Permitted Purpose').

IN CONSIDERATION OF and as a condition of the Client retaining the Contractor and the Client providing the Confidential Information to the Contractor in addition to other valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which consideration is hereby acknowledged, the parties to this Agreement agree as follows:

Confidential Information

- 1. All written and oral information and materials disclosed or provided by the Client to the Contractor under this Agreement constitute Confidential Information regardless of whether such information was provided before or after the date of this Agreement or how it was provided to the Contractor.
- 2. The Contractor acknowledges that in any position the Contractor may hold, in and as a result of the Contractor's retainer by the Client, the Contractor will, or may, be making use of, acquiring or adding to information about certain matters and things which are confidential to the Client and which information is the exclusive property of the Client.
- 3. 'Confidential Information' means all data and information relating to the business and management of the Client, including but not limited to, the following:
 - a. 'Customer Information' which includes names of customers of the Client, their representatives, all customer contact information, contracts and their contents and parties, customer services, data provided by customers and the type, quantity and specifications of products and services purchased, leased, licensed or received by customers of the Client;



- b. 'Intellectual Property' which includes information relating to the Client's proprietary rights prior to any public disclosure of such information, including but not limited to the nature of the proprietary rights, production data, technical and engineering data, technical concepts, test data and test results, simulation results, the status and details of research and development of products and services, and information regarding acquiring, protecting, enforcing and licensing proprietary rights (including patents, copyrights and trade secrets);
- c. 'Marketing and Development Information' which includes marketing and development plans of the Client, price and cost data, price and fee amounts, pricing and billing policies, quoting procedures, marketing techniques and methods of obtaining business, forecasts and forecast assumptions and volumes, and future plans and potential strategies of the Client which have been or are being discussed;
- d. 'Business Operations' which includes internal personnel and financial information of the Client, vendor names and other vendor information (including vendor characteristics, services and agreements), purchasing and internal cost information, internal services and operational manuals, external business contacts including those stored on social media accounts or other similar platforms or databases operated by the Client, and the manner and methods of conducting the Client's business;
- e. 'Product Information' which includes all specifications for products of the Client as well as work product resulting from or related to work or projects performed or to be performed for the Client or for clients of the Client, of any type or form in any stage of actual or anticipated research and development;
- f. 'Production Processes' which includes processes used in the creation, production and manufacturing of the work product of the Client, including but not limited to, formulas, patterns, moulds, models, methods, techniques, specifications, processes, procedures, equipment, devices, programs, and designs;
- g. 'Service Information' which includes all data and information relating to the services provided by the Client, including but not limited to, plans, schedules, manpower, inspection, and training information;
- h. 'Proprietary Computer Code' which includes all sets of statements, instructions or programs of the Client, whether in human readable or machine readable form, that are expressed, fixed, embodied or stored in any manner and that can be used directly or indirectly in a computer ('Computer Programs'); any report format, design or drawing created or produced by such Computer Programs; and all documentation, design specifications and charts, and operating procedures which support the Computer Programs;
- i. 'Computer Technology' which includes all scientific and technical information or material of the Client, pertaining to any machine, appliance or process, including but not limited to, specifications, proposals, models, designs, formulas, test results and reports, analyses, simulation results, tables of operating conditions, materials, components, industrial skills, operating and testing procedures, shop practices, know-how and show-how;
- j. 'Accounting Information' which includes, without limitation, all financial statements, annual reports, balance sheets, company asset information, company liability information, revenue and expense reporting, profit and loss reporting, cash flow reporting, accounts receivable, accounts payable, inventory reporting, purchasing information and payroll information of the Client; and

- k. Confidential Information will also include any information that has been disclosed by a third party to the Client and is protected by a non-disclosure agreement entered into between the third party and the Client.
- 4. Confidential Information will not include the following information:
 - a. Information that is generally known in the industry of the Client;
 - b. Information that is now or subsequently becomes generally available to the public through no wrongful act of the Contractor;
 - c. Information rightly in the possession of the Contractor prior to the disclosure to the Contractor by the Client;
 - d. Information that is independently created by the Contractor without direct or indirect use of the Confidential Information; or
 - e. Information that the Contractor rightfully obtains from a third party who has the right to transfer or disclose it.
- 5. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Confidential Information will remain the exclusive property of the Client and will only be used by the Contractor for the Permitted Purpose. The Contractor will not use the Confidential Information for any purpose that might be directly or indirectly detrimental to the Client or any associated affiliates or subsidiaries.
- 6. The obligations to ensure and protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Information imposed on the Contractor in this Agreement and any obligations to provide notice under this Agreement will survive the expiration or termination, as the case may be, of this Agreement and those obligations will last indefinitely.
- 7. The Contractor may disclose any of the Confidential Information:
 - a. to such employees, agents, representatives and advisors of the Contractor that have a need to know for the Permitted Purpose provided that:
 - i. the Contractor has informed such personnel of the confidential nature of the Confidential Information:
 - ii. such personnel agree to be legally bound to the same burdens of non-disclosure and non-use as the Contractor;
 - iii. the Contractor agrees to take all necessary steps to ensure that the terms of this Agreement are not violated by such personnel; and
 - iv. the Contractor agrees to be responsible for and indemnify the Client for any breach of this Agreement by its personnel.
 - b. to a third party where the Client has consented in writing to such disclosure; and
 - c. to the extent required by law or by the request or requirement of any judicial, legislative, administrative or other governmental body.

Avoiding Conflict of Opportunities

8. It is understood and agreed that any business opportunity relating to or similar to the Client's current or anticipated business opportunities coming to the attention of the Contractor during the Contractor's retainer is an opportunity belonging to the Client. Accordingly, the Contractor will advise the Client of the opportunity and cannot pursue the opportunity, directly or indirectly, without the written consent of the Client.



- 9. Without the written consent of the Client, the Contractor further agrees not to:
 - a. solely or jointly with others undertake or join any planning for or organization of any business activity competitive with the current or anticipated business activities of the Client; and
 - b. directly or indirectly, engage or participate in any other business activities which the Client, in its reasonable discretion, determines to be in conflict with the best interests of the Client.

Non-Solicitation

- 10. Any attempt on the part of the Contractor to induce others to leave the Client's employ, or any effort by the Contractor to interfere with the Client's relationship with its other employees and contractors would be harmful and damaging to the Client. The Contractor agrees that from the date of this Agreement until ______, 20___, the Contractor will not in any way, directly or indirectly:
 - a. induce or attempt to induce any employee or contractor of the Client to quit their employment or retainer with the Client;
 - b. otherwise interfere with or disrupt the Client's relationship with its employees and contractors;
 - c. discuss employment opportunities or provide information about competitive employment to any of the Client's employees or contractors; or
 - d. solicit, entice, or hire away any employee or contractor of the Client.

This obligation will be limited in scope to those persons that were employees or contractors of the Client at the same time that the Contractor was retained by the Client.

Non-Competition

- 11. Other than through employment with a bona-fide independent party, or with the express written consent of the Client, which will not be unreasonably withheld, the Contractor will not, from the date of this Agreement, be directly or indirectly involved with a business which is in direct competition with the particular business line of the Client that the Contractor was working during any time in the last year of retainer with the Client.
- 12. From the date of this Agreement, the Contractor will not divert or attempt to divert from the Client any business the Client had enjoyed, solicited, or attempted to solicit, from its customers, prior to termination or expiration, as the case may be, of the Retainer.

Ownership and Title

- 13. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that all rights, title and interest in any Confidential Information will remain the exclusive property of the Client. Accordingly, the Contractor specifically agrees and acknowledges that the Contractor will have no interest in the Confidential Information, including, without limitation, no interest in know-how, copyright, trade-marks or trade names, notwithstanding the fact that the Contractor may have created or contributed to the creation of that Confidential Information.
- 14. The Contractor does hereby waive any moral rights that the Contractor may have with respect to the Confidential Information.
- 15. The Confidential Information will not include anything developed or produced by the Contractor during the term of this Agreement, including but not limited to intellectual property, process, design, development, creation, research, invention, know-how, trade name, trade-marks or copyright that:



- a. was developed without the use of any equipment, supplies, facility or Confidential Information of the Client;
- b. was developed entirely on the Contractor's own time;
- c. does not relate to the actual business or reasonably anticipated business of the Client;
- d. does not relate to the actual or demonstrably anticipated processes, research or development of the Client; and
- e. does not result from any work performed by the Contractor for the Client.
- 16. The Contractor agrees to immediately disclose to the Client all Confidential Information developed in whole or in part by the Contractor during the term of the Retainer and to assign to the Client any right, title or interest the Contractor may have in the Confidential Information. The Contractor agrees to execute any instruments and to do all other things reasonably requested by the Client (both during and after the term of the Retainer) in order to vest more fully in the Client all ownership rights in those items transferred by the Contractor to the Client.

Remedies

17. The Contractor agrees and acknowledges that the Confidential Information is of a proprietary and confidential nature and that any disclosure of the Confidential Information to a third party in breach of this Agreement cannot be reasonably or adequately compensated for in money damages and would cause irreparable injury to the Client. Accordingly, the Contractor agrees that the Client is entitled to, in addition to all other rights and remedies available to it at law or in equity, an injunction restraining the Contractor, any of its personnel, and any agents of the Contractor, from directly or indirectly committing or engaging in any act restricted by this Agreement in relation to the Confidential Information.

Return of Confidential Information

18. The Contractor agrees that, upon request of the Client, or in the event that the Contractor ceases to require use of the Confidential Information, or upon expiration or termination of this Agreement, or the expiration or termination of the Retainer, the Contractor will turn over to the Client all documents, disks or other computer media, or other material in the possession or control of the Contractor that:

- a. may contain or be derived from ideas, concepts, creations, or trade secrets and other proprietary and Confidential Information as defined in this Agreement; or
- b. is connected with or derived from the Contractor's services to the Client.
- c. an "Archived" copy will only be kept for legal purposes:
- "Please note that under P.Eng (Professional Engineers Ontario <u>PEO</u>) License Regulations I am required to retain enough information on the work to enable a response to a future question, i.e. peer review if ordered, or any challenge as to how a design decision was made. Where this requirement conflicts with provisions of the NDA, we would each have to seek an understanding as to what we retain or how it is protected. CADGuru's usual retention period is 7 years."

Please refer to PEO documentation, section 10.8 Retaining Documents

https://www.peo.on.ca/sites/default/files/2020-12/PEPGuideline_Nov2020.pdf



Notices

- 19. In the event that the Contractor is required in a civil, criminal or regulatory proceeding to disclose any part of the Confidential Information, the Contractor will give to the Client prompt written notice of such request so the Client may seek an appropriate remedy or alternatively to waive the Contractor's compliance with the provisions of this Agreement in regards to the request.
- 20. If the Contractor loses or makes unauthorized disclosure of any of the Confidential Information, the Contractor will immediately notify the Client and take all reasonable steps necessary to retrieve the lost or improperly disclosed Confidential Information.
- 21. Any notices or delivery required in this Agreement will be deemed completed when handdelivered, delivered by agent, or seven (7) days after being placed in the post, postage prepaid, to the parties at the addresses contained in this Agreement or as the parties may later designate in writing.
- 22. The addresses for any notice to be delivered to any of the parties to this Agreement are as follows:

|--|

b. DESIREE VILLENEUVE 9138-9580 Yonge Street, Richmond Hill, Ontario, L4C 1V6

Representations

23. In providing the Confidential Information, the Client makes no representations, either expressly or impliedly as to its adequacy, sufficiency, completeness, correctness or its lack of defect of any kind, including any patent or trade-mark infringement that may result from the use of such information.

Termination

- 24. This Agreement will automatically terminate on the date that the Contractor's Retainer with the Client terminates or expires, as the case may be. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, all rights and obligations under this Agreement will terminate at that time.
 - a) Termination for Cause. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon written notice to the other, if:
 - i. the other party breaches any material obligation; and
 - ii. the breaching party fails to cure such breach within 1 week of receipt of the notice.
 - b) Effect of Termination
 - i. Payment of Outstanding Fees. Client shall pay Contractor for all services rendered and work performed up to the date of termination (subject to Client's right to pay only fair value if Client terminates for cause).

Assignment

25. Except where a party has changed its corporate name or merged with another corporation, this Agreement may not be assigned or otherwise transferred by either party in whole or part without the prior written consent of the other party to this Agreement.

Amendments

CADGuru.ca

26. This Agreement may only be amended or modified by a written instrument executed by both the Client and the Contractor.



Governing Law

27. This Agreement will be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of Province of Ontario.

General Provisions

- 28. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.
- 29. This Agreement may be executed in counterpart.
- 30. Headings are inserted for the convenience of the parties only and are not to be considered when interpreting this Agreement. Words in the singular mean and include the plural and vice versa. Words in the masculine mean and include the feminine and vice versa.
- 31. The clauses, paragraphs, and subparagraphs contained in this Agreement are intended to be read and construed independently of each other. If any part of this Agreement is held to be invalid, this invalidity will not affect the operation of any other part of this Agreement.
- 32. The Contractor is liable for all costs, expenses and expenditures including, and without limitation, the complete legal costs incurred by the Client in enforcing this Agreement as a result of any default of this Agreement by the Contractor.
- 33. The Client and the Contractor acknowledge that this Agreement is reasonable, valid and enforceable. However, if a court of competent jurisdiction finds any of the provisions of this Agreement to be too broad to be enforceable, it is the intention of the Client and the Contractor that such provision be reduced in scope by the court only to the extent deemed necessary by that court to render the provision reasonable and enforceable, bearing in mind that it is the intention of the Contractor to give the Client the broadest possible protection against disclosure of the Confidential Information.
- 34. No failure or delay by the Client in exercising any power, right or privilege provided in this Agreement will operate as a waiver, nor will any single or partial exercise of such rights, powers or privileges preclude any further exercise of them or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege provided in this Agreement.
- 35. This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and be binding upon the respective heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, as the case may be, of the Client and the Contractor.
- 36. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties and there are no further items or provisions, either oral or otherwise.

IN WITNESS WHEN		and DESIREE VILLENEUVE. day of, 20			
Client ():	(full name)	(signature)	(date)	
Contractor (Desiree Villeneuve):	(full name)	(signature)	(date)	
CARC	. 4	C47 024 7042		: (. O I	42 - (42 5